ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
HOUSE RESOQURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 19, 2005
1: 05 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT
HOUSE RESOURCES

Representati ve Jay Ranras, Co-Chair
Representati ve Ral ph Samuel s, Co-Chair
Representative JimElkins
Representative Carl Gatto

Representati ve Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Kurt O son

Representati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Mary Kapsner

SENATE RESOURCES
Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Chair
Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Vice Chair
Senat or Ben Stevens
Senator Bert Stedman
MVEMBERS ABSENT
HOUSE RESOURCES
Representative Harry Crawford
SENATE RESOURCES
Senat or Fred Dyson
Senator Kim Elton

Senat or Gretchen Guess

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EV\&: ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME; DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL RESOURCES

- HEARD

JT. H'S RES COW TTEES -1- January 19, 2005



NATURAL GAS 101

- HEARD BUT NOT RECORDED
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER

VWAYNE REGELI N, Acting Comm ssioner

Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overview of ADF&G s nission
and budget.

DOUG MECUM Director

Di vi sion of Commercial Fisheries

Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overview of the Division of
Commerci al Fisheries of ADF&G

KELLY HEPLER, Director

Di vision of Sport Fish

Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overview of the D vision of
Sport Fish of ADF&G

MATT ROBUS, Director

Division of WIldlife Conservation

Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overview of the Division of
Wl dlife Conservation of ADF&G

LANDA BAI LY, Executive Director

Board of Gane

Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overview of the Boards Support
Section of ADF&G

TOM I RN N, Conmi ssi oner

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)
Juneau, Al aska

JT. H'S RES COW TTEES - 2- January 19, 2005



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overvi ew of DNR.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CO CHAI R RALPH SAMUELS called the joint neeting of the House and
Senate Resources Standing Committees to order at 1:05:57 PM
Senators Wagoner, Seekins, and Stedman; and Representatives
Ranras, Sanuel s, Elkins, LeDoux, O son, Seaton, and Kapsner were
present at the call to order. Senator Ben Stevens and
Representative Gatto arrived as the neeting was in progress.

ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF FI SH & GAME ( ADF&O)

WAYNE RECELIN, Acting Comm ssioner, Al aska Departnment of Fish &
Ganmre (ADF&GS), introduced departnent staff who were in the
audi ence.

1: 07: 49 PM

ACTI NG COWM SSI ONER RECELIN stated that the m ssion of ADF&G is
to maintain resources and manage for the econony and the well
being of the people of the state, consistent with the principles
of sustained vyield. The departnent has about 850 full-tine
enpl oyees and about the same nunber of seasonal staff |ocated in
44 comunities throughout Al aska. The budget request is just
over $150 mllion, including $31.4 nillion from the general
fund. He noted that the general fund nakes up about 21 percent
of the budget, and federal funds conprise about 40 percent of
the departnent's budget. Some of the federal funds are secure,
and sonme depend on annual appropriations from Congress.

1: 09: 25 PM

ACTING COWM SSIONER REGELIN related that the comm ssioner's
office has 11 enpl oyees who, anong other duties, participate in
nunerous councils and organizations and coordinate Alaska's
partici pation in interjurisdictional foruns, i ncl udi ng
international fisheries initiatives, congressional fish and
wildlife legislation, and endangered species issues.

1:10: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how the departnent is defining its
m ssi ons and neasures.

ACTI NG COMM SSI ONER RECELIN said the departnent has spent nuch
time working on its mssions and neasures, which are very

JT. H'S RES COW TTEES - 3- January 19, 2005



detail ed. He highlighted the inportance of the mssions and
measures being achievable and neasurable. An update wll be
presented in detail at budget commttee neetings, he noted.

1:12: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that the legislature didn't
adopt any of the changes to ADF&G s m ssions and neasures that
the departnent has been working on over the |ast two years. He
asked if the departnent is working fromthe statutorily approved
m ssions and neasures from 2000 and 2002 or if it is working
from the current mssions and neasures that have been updated
adm ni stratively.

ACTING COWMM SSIONER REGELIN replied that the departnent is
updating its mssions and neasures such that they are nore
focused and achi evabl e.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested that the departnent continue to
work on its mssions and neasures to be adopted statutorily.

1:13: 24 PM

CO CHAIR SAMUELS quoted from a copy of ADF&G s m ssions and
nmeasur es regar di ng t he t ar get for t ot al "trip-related
expenditures for fishing, hunting and wldlife associat|ed]
recreation in Alaska." Co-Chair Sanuels said, "From 1996 to

2001 [trip-related expenditures for fishing, hunting and
wildlife associated recreation in Al aska] dropped. And if the
target is to increase it...what are you doing to reverse it?"

1:14:12 PM

ACTI NG COWM SSI ONER REGELIN responded that participation in
wildlife activities has decreased because of a small decrease in
nonresi dent hunters, and "it is all related to the abundance of
wildlife primarily in Interior Al aska, and we're starting to
take nmeasures to turn that around through managenent of
predators,” he related. However, it will take sone tinme because
participation is difficult to measure. He said ADF&G wel cones
suggestions fromthe | egislature.

1:15:35 PM
SENATOR SEEKI NS expressed concern about how the departnent can

accurately nmeasure abundance or availability of wldlife to give
hunters the "hope" that they will be able to harvest.

JT. H'S RES COW TTEES -4- January 19, 2005



DOUG MECUM Director, Division of Comrercial Fisheries, Al aska
Department of Fish & Gane, presented an overview of ADF&G s
commercial fisheries division. He detailed the authorities and
responsibilities of the division, which has about 300 full-tinme
and 520 seasonal enployees in four regions and 40 area offices
around the state.

MR MECUM stated that the division's budget is a "status quo
budget”™ wunder the governor's request, except for increases for
expandi ng sal non stock assessnent capabilities in Cook Inlet,
Prince WIlliam Sound, and Bristol Bay, and increases in expenses
for the enpl oyee retirenent program

1: 21: 10 PM

MR. MECUM presented a graph showing recent record-level salnon
production in the state concomtant with a decline in the
nonetary val ue sal non. Three years ago salnon hit its | owest
value in recent tine. Al t hough value has cone up in the past
few years, "people are struggling with those problens."”

1: 22: 16 PM

MR. MECUM provided information regarding the relative catch size
and dollar values of state fisheries by species.

1: 23: 07 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS asked how involved the Division of Commerci al
Fisheries would be if a fish hatchery for sport fish is built in
Fai r banks and Anchor age.

MR. MECUM deferred that question to Kelly Hepler, D vision of
Sport Fish. M. Mecum noted that many of the perfornmance
nmeasures that the |legislature adopted for fishery nanagenent are
i ncorporated by the division.

1:24:27 PM

SENATOR SEEKINS inquired as to the pressure the Board of
Fisheries and the department face to produce higher vol unmes when
the nonetary values of fish decline. He al so asked how that
woul d i npact subsistence and sport anglers.

MR. MECUM responded that he didn't think there was nuch pressure
on the Board of Fisheries to increase harvest opportunities just

JT. H'S RES COW TTEES - 5- January 19, 2005



because of declining values. He related his belief that the
objective is to nmaxim ze avail abl e harvest regardl ess of val ue.
The board, the departnent, and the legislature are trying to
| ower the focus on the nunber of fish and turn attention to
val ue. He nentioned that the governor has increased narketing
efforts in order to increase value. There is also an effort in
restructuring fishing regulations to create a nore steady
harvest that should support higher-end niche markets.

1: 26: 38 PM

SENATOR SEEKINS inquired as to the nethod used to determ ne the
maxi nrum al | onabl e harvest of salnmon for any particular tributary
or stream

MR. MECUM said the departnent has fixed escapenent goals. No
fishing is allowed until escapenent goals have been reached, and
t hese goals are based on maxi mum sustained yield determ nations.
He said the departnent uses a nunber of different nodels to
estimate maxi num sust ai ned yi el d.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if one predomnant nethod is wused to
cal cul ate the anmount of harvestabl e sal non.

MR. MECUM said the department uses the Ricker nodel--a spawn and
recruit nodel that neasures the production of progeny based on
t he nunber of adults that enter the stream

1:28: 17 PM

CHAI R WAGONER asked about the nunber of "cost recovery" prograns
the departnent is operating.

MR. MECUM expl ained that Chair Wagoner was referring to "test
fish" prograns under which the departnment harvests fish for

research purposes and then sells those fish for noney. The
| egi slature authorized the departnent to sell the otherw se
wasted fish as a way to fund departnent prograns. M. Mecum

said that this practice has raised concerns around the state
when commercial fish harvesters feel that it is an indirect tax

on them Al so, sone people view it as conpetition. M. Mecum
opined that he is not convinced it is a sustainable way to fund
core fishery managenent progranms. |In response to Chair \WAgoner

M. Mecum said there are about 10 of these prograns in the
state.

JT. H'S RES COW TTEES - 6- January 19, 2005



SENATOR SEEKINS asked what happens to bycatch, specifically
sal non i nadvertently caught in the pollock fisheries.

MR MECUM said that salnon caught in the Bering Sea traw
fishery needs to be kept, and they are generally donated to food
banks. He said there are different bycatch issues for each
fishery, so Senator Seekin's question is difficult to answer.
However he noted that the state has taken a "fairly aggressive
position” to limt bycatch, and that it is an ongoing problem

CHAI R WAGONER rel ated his desire for the departnment to work hard
on longline bycatch because of the waste, and he suggested it
may be a place for the state to recoup noney instead of from
cost recovery prograns.

MR MECUM said it was a good point. He noted that there are
rationalization prograns underway in the Bering Sea and the Gulf
of Alaska, which elimnate the race for fish so boats can
cooperate and trade bycatch. They can nove off of "hot spots.”
He said derby-style fishing causes problens because boats are
told when and where to fish. Wereas under quota systens, boat
captains can pick the time and place to fish, leading to higher
quality catch and | ower bycatch

1:34: 26 PM
KELLY HEPLER, Director, Di vision of Spor t Fi sh, Al aska

Department of Fish & Ganme, stated the division's mssion, which
is to protect and inprove Alaska's recreational fishery

resour ces. He said the division is built around the follow ng
core services: fisheries nmanagenent, stock assessnent, hatchery
production, access devel opnent, habitat assessnment, information

services, enforcenent, and pl anni ng.
1:38:23 PM

MR. HEPLER noted sone challenges the division faces. For
instance, there are two hatcheries in the Anchorage area that
are aging and have had a 25 percent reduction in production. He
related that the division has sone solutions, and he | ooks
forward to working wth the |legislature on solving such
probl ens.

1: 39: 39 PM

MR. HEPLER turned to the division's budget, which is around $43
mllion, of which the primary funding source is various federa

JT. H'S RES COW TTEES -7- January 19, 2005



receipts. The federal excise tax contributes the nost, he
noted. Another large funding source is the Fish and Gane Fund.
He informed the commttees that the division enploys 220 full-
time staff and 230 part-tinme staff within 3 regions and 14 field
of fices.

SENATOR STEDMAN asked M. Hepler to el aborate on enforcenent.

MR. HEPLER said that ADF&G has a "very aggressive training
program for all of its staff, which is coordinated with the
Department of Public Safety.

SENATOR STEDVAN asked if there is a need for an expansion in
this area.

MR. HEPLER said he would love to see that, but deferred to the
commi ssi oner of the Departnent of Public Safety.

1:43: 24 PM

CHAI R WAGONER said, "The state, several years ago, had a fairly
good-si zed hatchery program” He noted that hatcheries have
since been closed or were turned over to aquaculture
associ ati ons. He stated his belief that there are two

hat cheries that are "way under utilized."

MR. HEPLER said those hatcheries are old, and new technol ogies
and know edge are needed. He noted that those two facilities
didn't have the necessary water and an adequate footprint. The
departnment is learning how to "raise fish better” by borrow ng
expertise from Scandi navi a. He said the division wants to
establish a hatchery at Fort Richardson and one in Fairbanks.

1: 46: 29 PM

CHAI R WAGONER clarified that he was referring to [hatcheries] in
South Central Al aska.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked what M. Hepler neant in his handouts
regarding the division's coordination with "other regulatory
boards” on fishery managenent plans and regul ati ons.

MR. HEPLER said the departnent works wth the Federal

Subsi stence Board and the Division of Forestry, but, by far, the
Board of Fisheries is the main regul atory board.

JT. H'S RES COW TTEES - 8- January 19, 2005



SENATOR SEEKINS asked M. Hepler if his field personnel can
i ssue citations when they see an obvious infraction.

MR. HEPLER answered, "Absolutely." But there are certain things
his departnent deals with and other problenms which the State
Troopers address. He noted that the two agencies cooperate
wel | .

1:49: 09 PM

SENATOR SEEKI NS asked what the volume of citations is in a year.
MR. HEPLER said he did not know.

SENATOR SEEKI NS asked M. Hepler to provide a definition of the
Ri cker nethod to which M. Mecumreferred earlier.

CO-CHAIR RAMRAS inquired as to the operating costs of fish
hat cheri es.

MR. HEPLER answered that the Fairbanks facility in Co-Chair
Ranras' district wll cost about $1.25 nillion per year to
operate as wll the Anchorage facility.

1: 50: 47 PM

COCHAIR RAMRAS said Fairbanks has expressed interest in
| ocating, designing, and constructing its hatchery. He asked if
that nakes it nore conplicated or easier for the state.

MR. HEPLER answered that he wants the division to have the
ultimate responsibility, citing concerns wth engineering and
liability. He expressed doubts that Fairbanks will "take it and
run with it,"” but he expects and wants the city to play a
significant role.

1:52:58 PM
SENATOR STEDMAN inquired as to how many hatcheries the state has
built and divested itself of, why that happened, and why the

state needs to build nore.

MR. HEPLER said he would do sone research and provide that
i nformati on.

JT. H'S RES COW TTEES - 9- January 19, 2005



CO CHAIR RAMRAS asked if the Division of Comercial Fisheries
and the Division of Sport Fish are conpletely separate, and who
funds t hem

MR. HEPLER answered that the funding sources are different, and
he gave sone exanpl es.

CO CHAIR SAMIJELS said he hopes the Al aska Departnment of Fish &
Ganmre did a good job on its mssions and neasures because the
House Finance budget subcommittees will review that.

1: 55: 23 PM

MATT ROBUS, Director, Division of WIldlife Conservation, Al aska
Departnent of Fish & Gane, informed the commttees that the
division has four regional offices, and he said that the
backbone of the division is the area offices where staff conduct
wildlife i nventories, censuses, conposition counts, and
popul ati on status nonitoring.

1: 58: 06 PM

MR. ROBUS reported that big gane species |ike npbose, caribou

deer, and bears receive the nobst public use and the greatest
managenment and research attention from the division. In the
last two years the division has "noved into the intensive
managenent realm™ inplenenting four wolf control prograns, wth
a fifth one being added soon. He said it was a "substantial
addition to our managenent program" The division also focuses
on furbearers and other species taken for econom c purposes. He
briefly nentioned sone of the division's statew de prograns,
such as hunter and wldlife education prograns for the public,
including firearm safety, ecology, and biol ogy. He noted that
the division also runs three shooting ranges, and it nmaintains a
"small waterfowl program™

MR ROBUS told the conmttees that the division also has a
nonganme assessnent program which can help prevent endangered
species |istings. Such listings could negatively inpact
devel opnent activities and the ability to harvest other species.

MR. ROBUS di scussed funding sources such as tags and other user
fees, long-term grants under the federal Pitnman-Robertson Act, a
new annual grant program that primarily funds nongame projects,
and speci al appropriations from Congress.

2:02:18 PM

JT. H'S RES COW TTEES -10- January 19, 2005



SENATOR SEEKINS inquired if state wildlife grants and Pittman-
Robertson cone through matching-fund formulas, and if the state
is getting the maxi num federal dollars avail able.

MR. ROBUS answered that the prograns do cone through matching-
fund fornmulas and that the state is receiving its maxinmm
Pi tt man- Robertson dollars but not the maxinum for state wildlife
grants because those were difficult to match.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked how nuch is available in the state
wildlife grants.

MR. ROBUS said about $3 nmillion.

2:04:50 PM

MR. ROBUS added that ADF&G has communicated with |egislators
about its fiscal challenges. He said the departnent has to
"l'ive from year to year" from hunting and fishing |icensing
noni es. He opined that there are near and |ong-term negative
inmpacts to the division's core prograns. He stated a desire to
see a license-fee increase bill to fund core wildlife managenent
activities. In response to Senator Seekins, M. Robus said the
di vi sion spends about three dollars for every dollar the state
brings in for indoor shooting ranges. Qut door ranges are

cheaper, he noted. At present tine, he said, the ranges need a
$600, 000 expenditure.

2:07:06 PM

LANDA BAILY, Executive Director, Board of Gane, Al aska
Department of Fish & Gane, reported that the Boards Support
Section "does everything they can" to keep the public apprised
of neetings and actions, adding that there is a website for the
publi c.

2:09:14 PM

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if the Board Support Section is properly
f unded.

M5. BAILEY said it is operating on less than it was two years
ago. She reported that the division is requesting a $100, 000
budget increase because it is not able to do everything, such as
holding its neetings in smaller towns and vill ages.

JT. H'S RES COW TTEES -11- January 19, 2005



SENATOR SEEKI NS opined that the job is larger than "we are able
to acconplish” with the current funding.

The commttee took an at-ease from 2: 13 to 2:15.

Departnent of Natural Resources

2:15: 02 PM

TOM | RWN, Comm ssioner, Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR),
said he would present information to give an understanding of
the departnment's responsibilities. He said DNR s mission is to
devel op, conserve, and nmaximze wuse of Alaska's natural
resources, consistent with the public interest.

2:18: 17 PM

COW SSIONER ITRWN reported that DNR follows its mssions and
measures, and updates them quarterly. He characterized DNR as
the "business arm of the state." He told the commttee that DNR

ensures resource developnent, planning, nmanagenent, and new
proj ect approvals based on sound science, prudent managenent,

and neani ngful public involvenent. He said DNR follows the
princi pl es of resource sustainability and mul ti pl e-use
managenent .

COWMWM SSI ONER | RW' N nai nt ai ned that businesses cone to Al aska for
hi gh investnment return, cash flow, and security. He quoted the
"Wall Street Journal™ as follows: "Governnment is a key part of
society and vital to all of wus, but it nmakes no noney on its
own. Successful businesses are the engine of a healthy econony,

and governnment is a support for that engine." Comm ssi oner
Irwin believes resource developnent is the econom c engine of
Al aska. "That is where our value is at," he said, and the state

understands it has a vital role in creating a positive business
environment by providing certainty and reliability, reducing
del ays, and elim nating unnecessary standards.

COM SSIONER ITRWN said that the Alaska Coastal Managenent
Program (ACMP) was noved to DNR to streanmline the process of
permt devel opnment in coastal Alaska and nake it nore objective.
He conplenmented his staff on their hard work. He pointed out
that DNR took on habitat managenent duties from the Al aska
Department of Fish & Ganme, and last year the office operated
wth 18 percent |less staff and an 11 percent |ower budget but
still exceeded its targets. He said that nore than 99 percent
of the applications for Title 41 permts were approved.

JT. H'S RES COW TTEES -12- January 19, 2005



Commi ssioner Irwin said he did not hear one elevation, and "the
sky didn’t fall" when ADF&G s Division of Habitat was noved to
DNR.

2:23: 07 PM

COMM SSI ONER | RAIN di scussed initiatives, and added that DNR has
a new approach to expedite large mne permts. He gave an
exanple of a conpany comng to Al aska that was able to drill a

well within a year of its | ease purchase.
2:25:24 PM

COMWM SSI ONER | RW N handed out an organi zational flow chart for
DNR, and pointed out what he thought were key issues. He said,
"Parks could take a whole session.” Alaska has 4 mllion
visitors to its parks. Al askans conprise 80 percent of the
vi sitation. "Qur goal is to keep [the parks] open," he said.
Agriculture will have a new director. He said significant
i ssues include mad cow di sease in Canada, problenms with closing
the border with Canada, mlk prices, and others. He turned to
oil and gas and highlighted what he saw as major issues: Al aska
has significant gas reserves and an opportunity to build a gas
i ne. He related his belief that operations have to be managed
well and "as a business.” Wth the Departnent of Revenue, DNR
devel oped a conpl ex economi ¢ nodel to analyze the gas |ine.

COMWM SSIONER T RAWNN  opi ned t hat anot her key i ssue IS
TransCanada's application for a gas line right-of-way to the
bor der. He said that the public conmented on a draft |ease
produced by DNR, and that comrents were generally supportive of
a gas line. Comrents focused on Native hire, community access
to the gas, and disturbance to wildlife.

2:31: 28 PM

COMM SSIONER IRWN reported that DNRs Division of Ol and Gas
conducted fieldwork on the Alaska Peninsula wth encouraging
resul ts. DNR is moving forward on an oil and gas |ease sale
t here.

2:33: 54 PM
COM SSIONER RWN inforned the cormmittees that DNR was able to
open the coastal plain three week earlier than usual, giving

producers 20 percent nore time in the field. The depart nment
also worked with Conoco-Phillips Alaska, Inc. to pre-pack ice

JT. H'S RES COW TTEES -13- January 19, 2005



roads in advance of the "tundra opening," giving them nore tine
to build roads. He said "this type of innovation between state
and business” can help nove forward the state's business of
devel oping its gas.

2:36: 10 PM

COM SSIONER ITRWN stated that current large nmines in Al aska
include Red Dog, G eens Creek, Usabelli, Fort Knox, and True
North mnes. The Pogo project is under construction, and there
is headway in other potential |arge mnes. He said that Al aska
m neral exploration is increasing because the price of ore is up
and the state's business environnment is better. Last fi scal
year over 4,300 new state mning clains were |ocated. Si nce
July 1, another 2,500 clains were |located. The total staked in
15 nont hs was 880, 000 acres, he said.

2:38: 11 PM

COM SSIONER | RW N di scussed the Northern Al aska Environnent al
Center's (NAEC) appeal of mning activity at the Pogo m ne. He
said governnment and businesses cooperated to convince NAEC to
w thdraw its appeal. "If there is any doubt that responsible
resource developnment is welcone in Alaska, then that doubt
shoul d have been totally renoved,"” he said.

2:39:55 PM

COMM SSI ONER | RW N noved on to Al askan tinber issues. He opined
that the Tongass National Forest should be "responsibly open.”
Al though the state does not control this issue, he thinks the
state can push it. “I think it is a travesty when you have a
renewabl e resource...let it get old, get infested, rot, have
huge fire potential, and never get the real value out of it,” he
remar ked.

2:41: 15 PM

COM SSIONER ITRWN said that the state has a priority in
transferring state lands to private ownership. In fiscal year
2004, revenue for land sales was over $7 million, the highest in

15 years. He stated that DNR has a target of noving 500,000
acres of state land to nunicipalities in 2005.

2:44: 04 PM

JT. H'S RES COW TTEES -14- January 19, 2005



COM SSIONER IRW N reported that DNR has filed 13 applications
for recordable disclainers with the federal Bureau of Land

Managenment (BLM. The applications cover 31 water bodies, and
BLM has issued disclainmers for three of +the applications.
Comm ssioner Irwin said that these are the first three

recordable disclainmers in the nation, which he Dbelieves
establishes a pattern. Alaska is "establishing our rights,"” he
remar ked. The departnment was "less successful™ wth Revised
Statute 2477, and DNR is working with the Attorney Ceneral's
office on lawsuits "to establish state's rights."”

COW SSIONER IRWN reported that 6.4 mllion acres burned in
Al aska in 2004. There were over 3,000 firefighters working in
Al aska, and there were no serious injuries to report. But not
everything went right, said Conm ssioner Irwin, and he suggested
that the legislature have discussions on fire, and he
recommended reading "FIRE I N ALASKA, A H STORY OF ORGAN ZED FI RE
SUPPRESSI ON | N THE LAST FRONTI ER. ™"

2:48: 26 PM

COMWM SSIONER | RWN acknowl edged that fires are going to burn,
poi nting out that Al aska had a record 12,000 lightening strikes
in one day |ast year. He stated his belief that sonme fires
should be left to burn and sonme need to be suppressed. He noted
that increasing nunbers of hones and devel opnent expand the
critical response areas, which are costly to protect fromfire
He warned that the Anchorage Bow and the Kenai "could have
California-type fires." He nentioned a "fire-w se" program

2:52: 02 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS t hanked Comm ssioner Irwin for getting the Pogo
m ne back goi ng.

The conmittee took an at-ease from2:52 p.m to 3:00 p. m
ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the comnmttee, the Joint
neeting of the House Resources Standing Conmttee and the Senate
Resources Standing Commttee was adjourned at 3:00:15 PM A
| esson on natural gas following this neeting was not recorded.

JT. H'S RES COW TTEES -15- January 19, 2005



